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LA Jofriett !

G THIS e day of April One thoussnd nine hundred
and forty-six ERIC WILFRED THOMAS AYSCOUGE of 7 The Avenue
Hurstville in the state of Mew Scuth Weles, employee of Vicars
Woollan Mills makes oath and says as follows i=

As WX 59701 Pte E.W.T.Ayscough of 2/18 Bn I was tsken
Frisoner of War on 15 Feb 42 at Singapore, A8 one of A party
of approximately 150 Australlen Prlscners of War I was transferrsd
to Blakang Matl Island during FPebruary 1843.

Whilst on Blakang Mati Tsland we ceme under commend of
Lt«Col, Mikl who wias Commander of Miki Butel Unit, which waz a
supply unit for the Jepanese Alr Force.

Officer in Charge of Australisn Prisonsrs of War wes Major
D.T.Ckey of 2/18 Bn .

Lt.Col. Miki had on his staff a Captain nemed Ken Arai and
an interpreter named Yamemota. A descripticn of these Japanese
is as follows : Een AraY - Helght & ft, solld bulld, age sbout
40 yearsy He had very blg eers whiech earned him the nicknsme of
"Bat-eara™. He spoke gnng Boglish, Yamsmota - Helght about & ft
€ ins, age about 2B years, thin bulld, eould speak good English
and acted as Interpreter.

These Japanasa, together with other Japaness offlcers and
guards , are responsibls for & severe bashing edminlstered to Pte
Hill, 2/18 Bn, Pte Searle of E?lB Bn, Pte Delansy of 2/12 Bn,
Fte Wallace of 2/18 Bn and myself following the death of Fte.D.
Taulmin of Eﬁlﬂ Bne. This bashing took plece during May 1843,

Ags one of a working party of Priacnera of War, which
ineluded Yre. Toulmin apnd the Prlsoners of War whose nsmes I have
aiready given above, wa were amploysd on & berge af Pulsbuklm
unloading empty petrol drums.

Whilst working on the barge I witnessed Fte Toulmin being
pushed aff the barge into the water and to his death. An empty
patrol drum , wihlch was slongside Toulmin when he was pushad also
T'ell into the water as a result of the push on top of him.

The person responsible for bashling Toulmin was 8 Japanesa
NCO, whoas nems T do not know. A description of him is as follows @
Age about 28, Haight 5 ft 7 1ins, well bulli, spoke a 1little English
had a round, typleal Japansss fase. He held the rank of Corporal.

As B witness to this ineident T do not hesltate In saying
that the Japanese Cpl. pu%hud Teulmin Into the watsr purposaly.

The Japanese Cpl. had previously accused us of goldng alow.
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He then rushed up to Taulmin, who was standing on the
edgs of the barge and pushed him on the chest.

Toulmin could not help but fall into the water. He
pould not swim with the result that he drowned. A contlnuous
search for about two hours mede by myself ard thoss FP.W.
previously mentlioned revealed only Toulmin's hat. During the
gearch we dived several timea to the bottom of the water but
could find no trace of him.

On return to camp that night T and the Prisoners of War
whose names I have alrsady mentlioned made statements to Malor
Okey to the effect that Teulmin was purposely pushad off the
barge by the Japanese Corporal to his death.

The followlng night H;i:r Ckey reported tha inecident
to Jepanese Headquarters on kang Matl and shortly after
he dld the Japanesse Cpl responsible for Taulmin's dmsth and
ope guard cams to our guarters and escorted us ( those who
had made statomenta) to Jepanese Headquarters,

When we arrived at Japanese Headguasrters there was Major
Okey, Capt Een Aral, Yemamota and other officers and guards,
whose names I cannot remember. We wers interviewsd one at s
time. During the interview our statements were sgain taken by
the Jepeanese, We were then returned to our guarters,

On return from work the following day st sbout 1900 hrs
we were Laken to Japaness Headquarters by a thres star private
named Sukawltchl and two gusrds.

When we errived st Headguarters we were stood to attention
in one row. Oept Aral, Yamsmota and about ten other Japanese
including the Japanese Corporal came out on to the lawn where
wa were standing and through the interpreter asked us to
change our stetements to the effect that the Fapanesa (orporal
aid nu; push Teulmin intoc the water but fell in himaslf. Wa
refusad,

The Japanese then sdministersed to us a smevepa bashing
which lasted about two hours. They bashed us with fists, sticks,
heavy ftlmber, belts, scabbards and sven pleces of housebrick.
Durlng the bashing they contimually asked us to changs our
statements. We would not.

Several of us recelved blowa during this bashing which
left us with permanent injuries.

Pte. Delansy recelved a terrifie hit over the spinme with
& heavy plece of timbsr. Thils, together with other treatment he
recelved durlng the bashing seriously affected his mind and T
consider was reaponsible for him Jumping to his death from a
threa story bullding a few months later.

Pte, Searle recelved & nesty hit over the facs which has
permanently dlsfigured 1t.

I recelved a hit on the upper part of my facs with half
a housebrlek by Capt Arai which broke my nose snd saveraly
injured my left eye, leaving it permanently weak,

Mzjor Okey, who was slao present et the bashing,
eventually persuaded the Jepaness to ceass bashling us., He
impressed upon him that we would not change our statements sng
that we were speaking the fruth,

I hold Capt Aral directly responsible for this bashing

23 1t was Aral who ordered the other Japanese prasent to bash
us, and even bashed us himself to make us glve false avidencs,
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Despite the injurles and the weak cond tion we were in,
followlng the bashing, we were forced to go to work the following
dave

SBWORN by the abovenamed deponent

ERIC WILFHRED THOMAS AYSCOUGH at
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SYDREY this en Ao day of ; J/f_.;,.:.w.f,q :
April One thousend nine hundred }
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and forty-six
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IN TEE MATTER OF WAR CRIMES COMMITTED BEY JAPANESE NATICNALE AND
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IN THE MATTER OF THE ILL-THEATNINT OF PRISONERS OF WAR (CIVILIAN
INTUFENEES) AT EKOEE, OSAXKA BRARCH, PRISONER OF WAR CAMP.

of Glesorganshire, a menber of His Majesty's Royal Eaginsers,

:lamumm, of 7 Rolls Strest, Canton,
oath and pay as follows,
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Taken and sworn bafore me at the Law Qowrts, Ceardiff, on this 256th day of

February 1946,
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JUETICE OF FEACE FOR THE CITY OF CARDIFF.
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I, Dayid Thomes Kirk %EMIN, Grocers Assistant of 70 Millswyn £ .4.
Street SOUTH VARRA in the STATE of VIDTORIA and enlisted undsr &
the assumed nams of David IEWIS NX48301 of 2/19% Bn AIF, malke oL
oeth and =R =

1. I was taken priscner of war by the JAPANESE in STNGAPQRE on
15°Feb 42. '

2. I errived at FUEUCEA FW Camp No. 22 on 15 Janusry 1945,

5. Woilst gt FUEUOEAE I Jmew & Japanese 3gt by the nems of IRIO,
he waa tha orderly Sgt. IRIC repeatedly walked round the
camp looking for trouble and beat P¥Ts for the slightest breach
of dlaselpline.

4. I bave been beaten and kicksd by IRIC on meny occasions for
no spparent reasen, perhaps 1t wea for leooking sldeweys at
L

L

Se IRIO and & Japanese Medical 3ght refused to hand over Red
Croas parcsls and medlcal supplies and consequently were ths
gause of men dying In the eamp.

6, I cannot remember the JAPARESE medical Sgt's neme but ecould
regognise both theses JAPANESE,

7« I also remembsr a JAFANESE Sgt by the name of JODO. I ssaw
BElm beat a Pte JCHNSTORE %11l JOHNSTONE was mlmost senseless
and then push him Inte the guardhouse without bedding and st
thls time there was 3 to 4 Inchea of snow on the ground.

B, JODO laf't JOHNETONE 1in the gusrd house for a wesk and fad him
oen two bowls of rice each day plus a half a cup of weter.

9. When JOONST(HE was at the peak of his weakmess JODC brought
JOHESTONE out twlee a day when he would order the gusrds to
Leat him and also Joln in the beating himmelf.

10. There was & mine oversesr named HATSUKI. Whilst at PUEKUOKA
I worked Iin the mind end the shifts were anything up to
12 bras durstion, our diet was very monotonous just balng
plain rice end we would often change our boxes of plain riles
with the FEOREANS for their more tasty rations.
changing their rations
11. @ne day tLree FW's JOENSTON, SKINNER and WRIGHT were eaught/and
when we got to the top of the mine these thres F's wers aingled
out by MATSUEI and beaten with wooden sticks and sword sticks
in the sam¢ manner as= JOENSTONE was beaten by JODO.

SWORN st OURNE

this ,,,.'sz day of JULY, 1547. 3?‘“‘—
74 7
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& Commissionsy’ For the & z declaratlions
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and affidavits under the EVIDERCE ACT 1528.
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; LEETOLE Lieut Richard Wigram AUSTLN, 2/19 Bn, being duly sworn,
{ 21 gﬂn thsa following avlidance: _
1 "-
=\ P My full number, neme, rank and unit are NXTO0L56 Lisutenant
—*% "  Righard Wigram AUSTIN, 2/1%¢ Bn. My private address 1s 21 Rosemont
Avenue, Edgecliffle.

I was taken priscner of war at “ingapore on 15 Feb 42, 1 was
actually wounded during the Cighting in the nsighbourhood of Parice
Sulong, Bekrl, T did not notlee any war orimes committed during the
fightings On Wednesday the 22nd or 23rd Japuary the moat serliously
wounded cases were put into two ambulances &End wers sent on to the
bridge at Farlie Sulong. They were ssnt towards the Japanese lines
with the intention of asiking the Japanese permission to allow them to
proceed to one of our own bass hospltals., They were men who were dis-
Ermed and seriously wounded and c¢ould not have been it for fighting,
for some time., I was sent by Colomel Anderson, although not serlously
wounddéd, as I might be helpful. Myself and one of the drivers went
through and contacted & Japansse of floer who spoke & little lish.
Hlis rep waa that unliesas the whole lorce surrendered unconditlonally
to the Japansse the ambulmnges would not be allowed through but would
stay on the bridge until the morning. I sent the driver back to Col
{’A ﬁ,’ Anderson, who wes Acting “ommander of the Foreces, with that story, and
told him not to bother about us as would do our begt to gat away.
E-I-LL.A.. Lucklily I wss succeseful In gettingloff the bridgellater in the night.

A puard was not p on ua, &8 Japanase would come Rnd go AwWAY
OJ ﬂl for a time, but were goversd by machine guna., We moved them cut
quistly after dark back to our own lines. As to what happened after-

wards to those wounded, I have been informed by Lieut Haclmey that when
tha Japanese came in on the efterncon of Thursday they got out all the
wounded who could walk and herded them togsther, tied them up, and
alther bayoneted tham or machine-gunned them, and then set fire to them
{bf’q with petrol. Anotner men and Hgpretanded to be dead and escaped,

The wounded in those two ambulances would be some of the wounded refer-
red to by Llsut Hackney. Three men in those ambulances dled befors
they got back to cur own llnes, probably from shock.

wounded but others as well, remnanta of the ¢ and 2/9 Bna and I
think a battery of the 2 Fld Hegt and an arganisstion of Indian troops,
an Antl Tank regt, Such men &8 could got out., We were complately
surrcunded by the Japanese at that stage, I got out and got back to
the hoapltal at S8ingapore, I didn't have a chance &%t the time to ses
what troops were faclng us on the bridge, but later after I had learnad
to speak the langusge I asked & Japanese and was told that the Japansase
Imperial Guard were lnvolved, I did not notice if the offlesr I spoke
to was & blg man or notj I cannot say there was anything distinotive
sbout him. I had never seen & Japanese in uniform until that mornirg
and had no means of comparing him with anything.

A numbar of the troops were cut off at ;qa bridge, not only
e

I want into 10 AGH at Cathay Building in Singapors. I had been
in 10 AOH in the Manor House snd & shell fell intc the bullding. I was
in the Manor Houss about 3 or 4 days, We were moved out on agcount of
the shelling and because the Japansse were getting & bit elcser. The
Cathay Bullding was shelled while I was there, I could not say 1f it

fM wiks dallberately shelled as &8 hospital, {The building hed been used as
€4~ * Headquarters by 3 Corps until we actually arrived., The bullding had
. been & heepital only a few deys at the time of the shelling, About
20 shells landed on 1t, Unfortunately ome landed In the Floture
Theatre, which ls part of tbe buklding, when 1t happened to be fllled
wlth convelescents., I don't think more thsn half-sa-dozen were killed
and perhsps 2 dogen wounded, After the capitulatioch I remained in hos=
pltel for & week. The Japanese hardly disturbed the hospitel at all,
I saw Japanese of loers, whom I Imagined were doctors, ocome In and Eﬂt
shown arcund., There was no incident at all, From Cathay Bullding
sould see the Japaness in Singapore and they seemed teo comes in in a very
orderly way.

I romained at Changl until May 4%, I hed one month ln Singapore
in Ngvembesr &nd December 42 &t Hiver Valiey Rd. During that pericd
I hai not eny perscnal experiences of atroelties. I know someé men were
besten up in working partiss. I saw Lisut Arehibald, of the B9 Bn,

being carried in & stretbher cne night; he was %hndlninjuﬂd:

that was Lgcamber 42.
LA L) -ae
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1 do not know the names of the guards in charge of working
PArtY.

I was in Salereng Square, I had nothing to do there with
the negotiations with ths Japansse.

I went with H Foree to Thalland In May 45 as Ilnterprater
to the Australian group, about 800. The naport used was steal
trucka, probably rlee trucks. I was wi s In the Hanyu Aresa
from May to September 43, As regards the names of Japanese I came
in contact with at that stege, I ean glve you more or less the
set=up of H Fores, sxcept for on ui, that I have forgotten, Therse
wis Capteln Hachl Suga; Lisut ll-:ﬂnu 0, Suartermaster Liesut Yamalewe
Medical Sgt Makezuml, Interpreter Mr, Teéral and Lleut Shingigchl,
with alerks and odd people Trom HQ Ag camp commanders there was
Szt Taksoka of Col Oskes' osmp, Sgt Momba in charge of Hintok, and
Sgt Horl in oharge of Tonthan or tiye. Those were H Foree camps,
There wors six parties in H Foroe. Hintook's was an English one,
commanded first by Major Gaskill., HKanyu No.3 wes Col Oakes' party
and later & party undsr Mejor Smythe of the Royal Norfolks, British
troops joilned us, Tampl wes HQ under Col Humphries, Tampl South =
M&jor Smythe had been there untll he turned the pamp over to ua
and a4 rear party were lsft in commsnd of Major Melins, Royel Corps
Sigses Tonching was in comménd of Col Neway, S.F.V.F. énd at Tarso
waa & party of 300 officers inoluding 120 Australlens, I think, In
commend of Col Whittenbury, of the Indlan Ammy, the Austrslian
element being commanded by Major Ball, of the 53;‘15 Fld Regt. Thoss
offigcers were sent up from Changl about & month later than the rest
of H Foroe with the axpressa sssurence {rom Ameerd that they would

(tRAD be used for saministrative duties on the railwsy. On arrival in

éa
4

£0%

Siam they were made to work like common soldiers, Of others
Jag::::u I came in contast with I remembar Capt Hachlsuga

a an guard named Toyogima and one named Kurakupl were partlcular
1¥ brutal, Thess Japanese I have mentloned I hed deallings with
parscnally and would know them all again, Hachisuga gave mes the
impression that he was not particularly firm or useful when complal-
nts were brought to him. It was the same with Mechimoto. I think
cne of the Aifficulties with H Force and, as far as 1 know, with

F Porce was that slthough the forcea were warking in Thailand under
sngineers of the Thel command the actual administration of the
foroes remalned with the Japanese in tpe Malayan commend, snd in
consequence our treatment and raticns were very much worse than the
camps under the Thal command, It seemed to be quite impossible to
refer complaints to any particular senicr scurce, HacMisugs and
Machimoto were awere of the conditions of those under thelr command,
As regards Yamakawi I can only glve hnlﬂlf: svidence. Col
Rumphries repeatedly told me that Yamskawa had been more than
unhelpful in his dealings with us and had withheld retloms and pay.
I had no partisuler complalint to make with regerd toTakacks
personally, He slways attempted te llstem to grievances, but he
had the failing which 1s elmost universal in Jepaness of ficers

and sergeants of elther not being able to or not bothering to
gontrol thelr gusrds, and instances of persons being hit by the two
gusards mentioned took place even when he was in the csmp. The guard
ann.%in I heve seen striking an offlicer with & stleck when drunk,
and I have seen him striking a warrent officer who refused to sell
kim his watch., 1 have sesn him hit perhaps a dogen people. I
carmot say I know of any ceses where this hitting resulted in fetal
or permanent infury. Toyogima was not always sober, He used to go
down to the river in command of parties end get hold of a few
bottlas of Japanese sake down there and come back drunk. As regards
Kurckunl, on one cccaslon I saw him line up & group of men whom the
dootor sald were unfit for work in order to examine them, and es edc
man came before him he struck him the the face or kicked him. Scme
of the men wers B0 weak that they fell down. Apart from those
inecidents there were lasclated inatances of people baing struck

tut I would not clasa them as atrocltiea,

As regards the Engineer cofficers, I had dealinga with the
Engineer Lisutenant in charge of the wﬂn Camp &t Kanyu No.d
in conneotlion with brutalities gogmit by his ehglneers on our

working partles, and sometimes thoss requegks wsrse recelwved
favourably, wnile at other timea the man ﬁ;?o 1y lpful.
—— - %
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I don't know the names of the guards on the rallwsy, One who
perpetrated most of the beatingzs was always callsd Muss=o the men,

¢ I naver knew his real nams, I heard of &n lneldent regerding
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hls attempt to bury a man allve, Lleut Mensfleld who had bean working
in charge of a party of the rallway told me that Mussc had ordered him
to tip & truckload of gravel over a man who had fainbed at his work,
and had beaten him when he refused to do so, Lieut Menafield 1s from
the B8 Div Slgs and ea far as I imow 1s & Bydney man., I was the channsl
of o leint only ra far &8s cur own camp was congerned; that would be
umpmntn to Takaolka, Complaints to Hackisuga would go through

0ol Humphrles and hls loterpreter Wait, of the Intelligsnce Corps.

In Segptember 43 I went to HEanburi Base Hospltal aas Chisfl
Interpreter to Col Humphries, I wi&s later joined by Capt Waller, SFV3
whe was an interpreter to F Force. It was &8 mixed camp of H and P
foress and he and I aspumed the dutles of Ilnterpreter. 1 remained
thare until Dscember 43 when I returned toc Sime Rosd, Singapore Island,
gnd I was there as interpreter untll May 44. I was one of several
interpreters there for Col Newey. In May 44 I went back to Changl
where I was & H{ interpreter until the capitulation, PFrom March to
July 45 I assumed the dutles of Chief Interpreter.

The Japanesa HJ set-up &b Changl was: the Commander wes Lt-Gen
Saito, His officinl titls as far as I know was General Commanding

_ Priscners of War end Internees in Malaya and Sumatra. His headquarters

office wes in & house in what we oslled Halfmoon Strest, just below the
Changi Frison, and he lived in & villa about 35 milea from the camp.
Aftsr tha capitulation he gave me to understend thet he had te r to
Japanese Supreme Commander Ifagakl, whose HS were at Raffles Sdwb
Singapore. His was definitely not a FOW command; I think the Jtplmu
called 1t 8 Area Army, He was one of the suberdinates of 1e

The only oceccasion when Ieagaikl visited the FOW camp at Changi 8 in
July 45, As far as I lmow he had never been In the camp before.

I never saw any Indleation befors the capitulation or whils I was thers
as interpreter that General Salto dealt on any matters direct with Toklo

The set up of General Ssito's staff was: Senlor Staff Offlieer
was Lt,Col Banno, who hed been sent to Thalland in March 43 as Commande)
of F Pores; his qQuartermaster and Paymaster wi:z lajor Tanaka and later
Cel H-.gunuthﬁdjutnnt. and ADC Liesut Kotenl; Transport YIficer Capt
Yemada, with 3zt Major Hasukaws; Intelligence Ufficer Lleut Wada; and
the following offlgers who at times administered command of prison camps
and at other times were attached to his HY: Lleut Takahashl - he was

. not thers the time they surrendsred; Lleut Toda; Lieut

Wakebayashi; 2nd Lieut Homma; Ideut, later Captain, Mlura; Interpreters

Mr, and Mr, Koyama, Those I think are the only names I can

r « The Commander of Changl POW Camp was Capt Takshashl from
May 44 until Junes 45, In other words that was from the time the

camp was eoncentrated in the prison area until June. Takahashi joined
a2 gompany of Enginesrs et Bukittima and command was taken by Lisutb
later Captain Miura, who had formerly been In Symatra. The second in
command was [leut Hommsa, with the folloving 4 sergsants, later staffl
sargeants, Sato, Tsujlbayashl, Pujl, and I shi, together with &
helf-dogen or so Horean clerks. Interpreter waa Mr. Elnoshita.
The mediecal side of the cmmp was run by Capt Sugukl, [ieut Tgnlo, and
Sgt Major Makasuml (formerly sergesnt with H Foree). I had no direct
dealings with these medical personnel, as thls was done by Lt=Col
Neil, I.M.3, Lt-Col Glymn White, AIF, with Capt Waller as I.ntlrfruhl',
but it was common knowledge both amongat the prisonera mmd the Japansass
the t Capt Sugulel was seldom sober, and ccnsequently 1t was vary
difficult to have any dealinges with him, It 1is posaible Lieut Tanio
was on the railway or in Burma, but I never came across him there.

I first met him at Singapore.

Az regards the compllelty of any of these personnel In war
erimes, I cannot glve any particular acts or atroeitles, but I think
&s Col Hanno was in charge of the 10,000 of whom half dled in Thailand,
he must bes hsld responsible to & degree. I 4ldn't have anything to do
with him in any official capacity, but hare spoken to him many times,
and he gave me the impression of being old and completely lnelffectliwe,
and was & laughing stock even amongst the Jepansse, Capt Takahashl
very of ten referred to him in uncomplimentary terms. As regards
Takahaahl snd Miurs I regard both &8 hingbizrt:. ly rfﬁ-nuupln

t a:
of ans??. y both tried to do their best.
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: I have no lmowledge of the unit responsible for the masseecrs of
Okinsse &nd Malays on the beach. That was in the eariy days.

I did not &t eny time see heads of decapltated persoma dls=-

‘Played.

With regard to the completion of the Thalland reilway by &

- geptein time being & direct order of the Emperor, we were glven Lo

hon

/R

understand that the Enginser in command of bullding the rallway

hed been ordered to have 1bv completed the end of August 43, and that

fallurs to do sc would have Bo be explated by hari kari, It waz not
by then. They were working till November, I think. I dan't

imow when the junction of the two Censtructicns wes made but I think

it was some time in November. I never went to the Burma end; 1 never

want farther north than Kenjyu.

I don't lmow of the nicknames, if any, siven to the
Japenese apart from what 1 have already mentloned,-

I don't know ths nams of the pertlculsr unlit of the Japanese
Imperial Guard who wers sald to be responsible for that massacre.

Most of my deallngs were with the Camp Commandant at Changl,
and it was not untll after the surrender I spoke to Salto. I went down
with various e&rtisans to instal slectriec light; I never went te do
any negotliating. Any orders at all that ceme into the camp from
General Saito would come through Takshashi., As regards pay they wery
often csme direct from Tenalm thrnm*m British Peymepte jor Byrne.
Cel Bannc used to be referred to, Capt Takahaashi , pression
which i translated as Senlor Officer. It might be what call a
Camp Commandiant at Div HQ or Ares Commandsnt, He was the second senlor
offieer on that HG immedlately subordinate to Salte, but he waas &lways
treated by the Japanese with such amusement and pontempt that I don't
think he had any important posaltion on the HRe

When I wes at Slme Road Camp Lleut Matsuda was Camp Commandant,
and second in command wes Lieut Pukuda, Béyond being unpleasant
and unhelpful I hed no particuler complaint to make about him, It
was the sams Lisut Pukuds who was with F Foree, although I am not
esrtatn he would be the man they were after, Puluda just sat in the
hesd of fioe, He was indieted for sellling Fed Crossz parcels.

tne of floer in H Foree at Eanburl Heoapital, Offlcer Cadet and
ond Lieutenant Hotta, was commanding the camp. Hs was & good
dlseiplinarian end quite helpful. Frevicus to him Sgt ¥ajor Takahashl
hed been in command. He was definitely inferior to Hotta. He 1s not
identlical with Capt Tlhhtlhi.ﬂfﬂ name was Jempeal Takahashl,
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I gertify that the above evidence 1s true and correct.
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this = day of May
ntne hundred and forty-six.
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1 VIDS34E Gummer Bertres John AUCHETTL, % &nti-Tank bhegt 4 T F,
now in Eeidelberg Military Hospital, meke cath and sy &8 followa

A+ Iwes gartured in SINGAFGEE on 15 Feb 42 and went with "4"
ﬁ Foreo JURMA on 15 May 42,

2+ Wie spent three days m TAUCI Staging Cemp and while we wore

thers eight men of my regiment who had attempted to SO De
wéfé brought in end shot,

e Capt SHINA waz the dapanose Carp Cormandant who ordered the
ing

SWORN st HEIDELBERG in the )

g g, vsie, ' BS [l

Before me,

(Lt Col Willimm Watt LEGEATT )

An Officsr of the Australian ETlitEr]' Forcos
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On this eightesnth day of April, One thousand nine hundred and
forty-six, Thomas Bruce AUCETERLONIE, of 7 Frances S5t., Epping,
in the State of New South Wales, malkes osth snd says ss follows:-

1.1 As NXS54991, Cpl T.B. AUCHTERLONIE, of 2/3 MAC I was taken
prisoner at Singa on 16 Feb 42. As one of a party of three
thousand umugxnltmdmurmw on 15 May to
VICTORIA POINT where 1,000 Australisns lended. As one of 700
I was sent to the aepodrome Vietoris Point.

2. The Officar in charge of the Australians was Major GREEN
of £/4 MNG Bn. The Commander of the Aerodrome PW Camp was
Lisut EJOUCHI (OGUCHI), niclknamsd "Smiler."

-, The Commander of the Vietoris Point ares wans Capt YASUDA.
Lieut SHIRAST was commander of the 300 PWs at Victoria Point
(Froper). A deseription of Capt Yeasuda is as follows - Height
about 5'6", Age 45 yrs (approx), compmcot build, exssptionally
dari . &omplexion for a Jap end wore & moustachs.

4. A description of Lieut EJGUCHI is as follows - height
58", Age B9 (mpprox), slim bdulld, sxeeptionally good looking
for a Jap. He was alweys smiling and was Imown as "Smiler”.
He was an ax bank olerk in Tokilo.

5. A deseription of Lieut SHIRASI is as follows - helight
5'9", Age 36 (spprox), well built, rather protruding teeth.

- I was employed with seven other Australians at Jap BEQ an
driver to Lisut EJGUCEI. Semes time in July I saw o Burmese
imprisonsd in & "Dog Cage™ at the radio station, Victoria Pt.

A "Dog Cage"™ was & board structure no more than 3 ft by 5ft, used
as & solitary confinement cell by the Japa. :

T A Jap told me that the prisoner was an ex-Burmese polioceman
and that he had been arrested for the purpose of galning informs-
tion mbout the British occoupation.

8. I saw the Burmess in ths "Dog Cage" on a number of
cogaslons during the next fortnight. He was progresaively more
haggard durlng that period and the Japs told me that he had been
repentedly beaten.

8. At the end of the fortmight I drove Lieut EJGUCHI to the
radio station. While eitting in the car I saw a number of wicker
lounge chairs being placed in poeition. Thess were occcupisd by
Capt YASUDA, Lieut EJGUCHY, Sgt-Major TAEAHASI, another Sgt-Major .
QN and a Sgt whom I could personmlly identify but whose names I
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do ndt know. Alsco present was the Japanese interpreter. He
was '™ high; age about 7 yrsj; alight bulld; lantern Jjawsd and
sunken eyed. He was a oruel looking peraon.

10. The soner was then brought out of the cage and his hands
tied his bagk. The interpreter procesded Lo lntarrogate
him In Malay. I underatood little Malay and could net gather

and length 1 metre were used in the punishment. This continued for
approximately half an hour, after which relays of four Japanese
(] re f‘r-ll“hhhlhuun;.!h-m

15. After about fifteen minutes, his ankles were tled up behind
his body with s rope around the neck, and a fire lit undernea
him. He stood this for ten minutes and appesared to lose sonscious-
ness.

g

14. The Japansss then gut him down, placed him in a truek with
two armed guards and two soldiera with toola. The trusk
was driven l-;;nl returned pome twenty tes later without
the Burmeas. Japansse interpreter was ons of the moat
Tllliil-ll of the termentors. This interpretar was nicknamed "Hurry
Hurry".

16. There were no other Australian eye witnesses to the terture.
I was ordered to turn the car around prior to the commencement

of the torture but I cbssrved from about 15 feet through the rear
vision mirreor.

16. [Lieut IJGUCHI beleonged to the KEMFEI TAI.

17. Lieut SHIRASI, during the time we were at Vietoria Pt Camp
appeared %o be more humane than his fellows. :

L o RO

this eenth day of April, Une }
nine hundred and forty-six

BEFORE ME f"ﬂ“wh )'/’

A Justice of ths Peaoe
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e AR _CRINES CONMISSION
2 Evidence taken befors Mr, Justice Mansfield st Lebusn Island,
on 10 October 1945,

Capt. JOHN BARTHOLEMEW ATKINSON, being duly sworn, gives the
ng evidences

Wy neme is John Barvtholomew Atkinson. My private nddress
is ¢f- Barclay's Bank, 308 Park Road, Hornsey, Londen, M.B.

I was first interned in Jesselton on 1€ Mey 1842 and remained
there until 5 September 1ME. 1 think there were B8 prisoners
there, who were all Europeansj they were anll civilians. During
thet s the comditions as cempared with those later, were
extremely good. We were confined in Barreck No. G.l4. I wes
the rationing officer snd the food wss edeguate in quantity

end, compared with later food, wes very « We were giveny,y,|;
helf a pound of t n day and half = of rice eight
and almest a full of potatees. Fruit was supplied almest “"-

as we nsked, The gemeral treatment of the internees wes quite good.
There were one or two assaults; hut in most cases they were deserved.

In September 1942 we moved to Kuching end remained there until
Eeptember 1945, We were transperted from Lebuan in the held of
the ship, which was extremely uncemfortable. We were wervy
erowded, The food was good; we wore supplied with plenty of
rice and sugar and on the rf in Jessalton we were given = lot
of bully beef and sardines snd so ¢ tuna fish., The trip teck

us five deyas. There was Just sufficient room te lie dowm. Thore
we2 no illtreatment during the trip. One thing we felt very
bhadly was the fact that we hed net been ellowed to meet our wives
or even see them for five months and when we were sent awsy we
were givem only half-an-hour to get ready. Cel. Adams nsked
that we might be allowed to ses our Tamilies but was merely told
that if the guard allowed us to see our wives he would loss hias
head. We were then put in rallwey trucks with clesed deors on
the cemp side; I wes able to ny deor & little snd ssw

the women's camp but was teld I must not wave.

When w sarrived at Kouching there we-s= already the ssme number
n3 in our ownm party at the camp; they had come from Kuching,
Miri and Sarewak. The Dutch from Pontianek wers in & different
camp &nd later came in with usk, We noticed an immediate
deterioration in food; firat of &ll, there was the lack of
meat. We had been getting sdequate quantitées of meat but now
we received only about B of an ounce per man, Apsrt from this,
there was a felr smount of rice, and at first we slso hed
ubimanis.

¥e worked on the serodrome and we used to bhe semt mbout three
rice balls to us and we also had plentiful supplies of salt fish
and even coffee. That went on for nearly 2 month. We then
stopped work on the aerodrome on P6 tember and eur feood
iately dropped, the reason given being thst as we were not
doing hard work we would not require the extra feed. The
we recelved was not a balanced dilet Yy any means; there was
shortage of rice but the meals were most unappetising and we
2 bit thin becmuse of that. We noticed perticularly
lack of fish and oll; we ended by receiving very little
sty very little pork and loss oil than we had been accustemed
to hefore. Rlice eventually went down te = very smell su=ntity.
the middie of 1844 we really started to go down in heeslth
by our-own gardens were producing and the Jepsnese
us te use what we hed growm ourselves. We contrected
berl beri =nd osdema. That was ped & good deal by the
of red rice which had been imported from Java by the
t had that, we should have hed very much
act did. There was n bit of
tropicel ulcers in the camp the latter period and quite &
lot of sickness. The best illustration of thet is the fact tiat
in Mavreh 1945 we were compelled to turn out a gang ef 100 men

et
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the planting in the putside gardens. I wes in chsrgs of
gang =nd 1t wss get up by & man called a labour mester in
cEmp. AL firvst, &t was Tairly easy to get the 100 men and
to glve some men & day off in every five. Thst hed to contimue
wi m stopped finslly om 18 June. Towards the ond, we
re havi to turm out extremely sick men - men who shoold never
R hase been o utside 2t all = in order to keep the number up.
Lhout every Ie-nll: Col. Adam= used to protest agsinst thiz and
say that the men wore not fit and tried to heve the mumber
reduced to ﬁﬁ azlfi then te 30, but the Jspenese just lsughed and
said, "Ir you can't turn the men out, we will come into the
camp =an’ turn them gut.®™ Thet did hn;pan on ene occesiong they
turned out men who were not it to work. One or two men esellepsed

fhe

B

on the Jjob.

We all suffered 2 good desl of eye trouble owing te the deficiency
in food. I th=t I could not read 2=z well e&s before

and I had te recourse fto my glasses again. That was =

few months efter our srrivel =t Kuching snd the seme trouble was
prevalent throughout the camp. Men slse suffered black-guis. We
were doing a good cdesl of gerdening st that time and when we
would get up after bending down, things would suddenly go black,

¥We had no res=zon to complsin of cur accommofiation; we had 38
or X' men te & hut.

A mumber of the men whe came out to work when they were neot Tit

would be gut emly & day or pethaps 2 week nnd then have te stay

in or collapse. Ulcers and cedems ceme out and the doectors said

they ceuld not Tisk these men going eut to work. Ey that time,

most of the cemp had oedems emd I hsd it very bedly myself.

As I was in charge of the gang &snd had to keep going, the doctor

EEve me some pills but I think I nnthsunlyminthew

who had them. T

At first there was po 1lltreatment eof the prisoners; we were then

under regulsr troops on the serodrome but towards the end the

Fommosan boys teek over guerd duties. They tried to be =s
soldierly as possible and xikhwugk they were stupidly hersh on

meking men work when they werse met fit. If thevy saw & man

resting for & op of minutes, they would dascend upon him

and threaten him he did net kﬁa‘p on the Job. Graduslly,
beczuse, sccording to their own stztement, they were told to

do s by their officers, they bhegan fﬂn&-sln;:ping and bant.j.ng_

I was working in the garden with another married man next to

the cemp in which pur wiF¥es were Kept and we were elways in
trouble. We used to try to smuggle things In and we were both
assaulted once or twice becmuse of that, but net serlously.

I had & bed kilck on the shinz, IT w:- were pot stspdine to
sttention properly, it whs a commen przctice for one of the

gusrds to suddely land out with = bo#ted foot. I still besr the
scaT of one such kkick I recelved.

Gradually, the guerds becams worse and in pearticulsr certain
ones were renowned for the manner in which they behaved towards
#ll prisoners, &nd in particularky the prisoners—of-war.

The first serious incident I can recall wes in shout the middle
ol 1944 or sarly in 1944, when 2 Mr. Kler, w n charge

of the inside gardens, we s attending = tuul gutzide 3“;.
the camp. I waz present throughout the whole ef the incident. ~
The orders were that as we ceme out of the camp we hed to bow

to the Japapesze santiry opposite the gete. XKier was repeztedly
coming in 2nd eut of the camp, bringing his toels; on the lirst
three or four occcasiocns he hnraﬂ to the guerd, who took no notice
of him, and consegquently he did not bow the nar!: two or three
times. A Japanese officer frem ocutside the camp czme in with
one of the glder soldiers mnd I think this zusrd then decided

he would show how tough he reelly was. He was known to ®s 6s
the Junlor Ball Kicker. He first of all struck Kier for not
seluting him and them started kickdng him, and followed him

3! all round the place trying te kick him in the testicles, =nd
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- e . doubled him up. However, the ZUATE SC1ll WOl Ul 4 wisam mas:

ig abtnout 60 years of agej he bas Just come back from hospital.
It wes & very vicious szsseult but I do net think Kier was setumlly
hoapitalised beceuse of it.

The next esssult wes in the ssme vear., A man from Jessalton
B O. Benthem, wes smoking e in the sgusre =ns wss caught oy
8 guard known ss The Weasel. He took Hentham outside the camp
gnd gave him & tervific besting his fece wes very swollen next
merning end he bore the meriks for many days; his mouth wne badly
lecerzted end he could not eat.

I think probably the worst atteck of all was made whapn somo
ttouble occurred over 2 half-ceste lady who mede some allezation
te the Jspenese officisls. A Jipanese caslled The Red Indian took
me 8side one dsy in May 1945 and he safd, "look out todey. There
is trouble. I do not beat men but other gusrds come along apd
do soj you hsd better keep working.?”_  He led me over the hrow of
tie hi end on the fsr side was o H f British soldiers
known te us as "Stengsh Meti® (Helf dead). They were sll men '~
who sheuld never have besan out of the camp; they were zll
hosplits]l esses, yet they were &1l working., The gurrd led me
over to them and there I =aw ome of thase Jxypxn men sufferdng
fery badly from mulbiple ulcers and cedems being civen s mest
saveare becting; he wes asssulted with fist, boot end rifle butt.
He was thrown te the grownd, picked up again, then thrown down
again time spd time =gaipn. Eventually, I turned to the msn who
was with me and ssid, "Can't you tell him to stop this?" He
saié, "No, I can®t." I kmew that if 1 went along end interfersd
it would only caose mors trouble for the men himself snd I would
gat into trouble mlme., Warrant Officer Wil of the Indian J'H‘
Ammy Service Carps, who wmas in charge of the » Bctually tried
to intervene but he could mot do nnythiong. The British seldier
waz then compelled to stand up with & welght over his hesd ond
knees bent wntll he cellapsed. He was then kicked and mnde To
stand up agzin. This wes a favourite heblt of the Jepanese,
The gusrd whe wes making the sssgult wes known to us == Intercourse.
The assanlt went on for some time snd then enother BEritish seldice
wes called out and he wes similerly besten., I then went =wer.
That seme morning there was g eertain ampunt of trouble; no
metter how herd we worked, we could not do the right thing;
1l wes not s=saulted my « I them wemt over arain to lock st
sois of my men =nd I saw spother man beinz asssulted in ths
gsame menmer; he wis kKicked snd hed to kncel down foar 2 considerzhble
E:IT; the man respensitle on this cceasion wes the Junler B=11

BT

The next ssssult was made on Idnguerd, Wremm snd myself. I

saw one of the Japenese and was given an order tg get fireweood
at 1l.30 s.m. Instead of twelve olclock when we were going home.
He told me to do that on the Hsturdey and I sald to him, "De you
mesn to do that every day?" He sald, "Yes.® The {ollowing
Mondsy we hed some reguliar soldiers whe ceme to the camp in
charge of us, sa I got Lingusrd {Ihn could spesk Inpnmsa] to
come up &nd to them thst we were to ghven instructions
to get Tirvewood 11.30. They said, ®Carry on.™ Accardingly,
1 fell the men in 2t helf past 11 when suddenly the Weasel came
up and ssked me what did I think I was doing. I got Linsusrd

to explain te him that I ves merely carrving eut the instructicns
given te me by the man 1n chorge of the gsrdens, Tekimura.

He then tolé me I was & liar end proceeded to give me a bestine.
He was left-handed end 1 waszs watching his right hand end his
rifle; but instead of changing hends he gave me 5 Tew clouts
with his left fist. He then turped on Linguard, who had done
nething at all except act as Interpreter, =nd ssssulted him with
hie fist. Linguerd unfortumately dodzed one of the Hows shich,
of course, 1s & very bed thing to do, and the Weasel proceeded
to use his beot and rifle en him and geve him one particul=rly
nasty hit with his rifle butt on the bDeck. 1 wrsz standing f=irls
near 2t the time and I thought Lingusvd would he sr:fimusly hort
but somehow he wes not. Then Takimura came up &nd turned 1o
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him =nd s=ig, "You told me on Ssturdey th=t I wes to fall the
"men in on Mondeys, Wednesdsys end Fridavs =2t 11.350." The Wessel
then ssid semetiidiog to him in Jepenese =nd in t"-Eﬂ'FﬂHHE 4o whet
the Wease]l spparently esked him, Tekimura said, "He.® Thersupon,
the Weasel said, ™ou hsve been lying," and pmceedad to give

pe gnother beating. This time he used his boets and rifle butit
bat I was not badly hurt. Then he turmed teo the men who had
fallen in and picked on the man on the left in the Pront rank,

F. H. Wremn, who was doing nmothing st all. There had been mo
order to -nmr-_- te attention slthough thevy were actuslly stending
to attention, but Wrenn had & bad ulcer on his left foot and
could kot keep Ila heel on' the g'ruunﬁ, with the result thet he
had his heel slightfly reised. e was 8 sick man and would never
heve beéen out if we had not been compelled to put out 100 men.
The Weesel welked up to him and without any warning hit him on
the jJjaw; Wrenn wes not shle to do enything snd fell down. He
mensged to get up and was promptly Zlven amother couple @f hlows
which dim put him dowm for good. The Wessel then Kicked him

in the spine and also used his rifle butt on him, prodding him
with it. I went ferward te try and stop the kick but I was too
lzte. Wrenn 15 a map over 50 yearz of age. We earrisd Yrenn
inte the hut. I was two Dbeds from him and 1 could see thet he
was seriously hurt. He lay gquiet and cpuld not Bat sny luneh.
The docter ceme and hed n look =2t him dm snd did whst hie could.
That afternoon, while I wes out =t work, he hed = and wes
parelysed down his left side. Col. Adems went up buga
sbout thls apnd complained ef the =sssult. He was not there

but 1t so hsppened thet the Orderly GIificer of the week wms Dr.
Yasmamoto, who promptly came imto our berrecks, which wcos a

very unususl thing for him to do, =nd ordered that Wremm be

kept quiet =nd that cold compresses he put on his head. As

far as I know, no medicine turned up. BRowlsnd, who was my
peighbour, sat up all night with Wrenn; we were told that we

had to keep someons sitting by the hedside because it w=s possible
that Wrenn might tske anpther stroke. Yemamote came In fer three
sxxifwu ézys in succession to lock 2t the patient and was very
econcerned ebout him. Col. Adems did see Col. Suga who sald 1
wes &t Tault becsuse I hod tried te put it =cross the Wessel

and that I had deserved my besting. He sdmitted that Lingusrd
hed not done enything wrong snd w=s ohviously cencerned about
¥renn. Wrenn never Tteally recovered from thst beating; knowing -
him end living in closa proximity te him for i years, 1 ean onlty
sey thot he has been affected mentally; he is ept teo stare and
not understend when you ask him s guestion.

Some British of ficers one moming fell in in fronmt of the offTice
and in pas=sing one of them szed & remark, appsrently, te the
privste or N.C.0. in the ether renks? r::up snd the Count's
Grandson, who dissppested from Kuching mt. long afterwards, cume
up behind him with 8 biXlet of wood end hit nim on the head.

The men collepsed =nd had te be carried into his camp; he wmos
gseriously ill for some time, I =aw the sssauli myself.

Another Jspenese who Treguently committed rother ssvage asszsults
on people was an interpreter called Inagasulki. He was & civilian
gl though he wore & sword and csp. He inaisted on people saluting
him end if =ny person did not do so properly or iIf he did pol s=ee
someone stlute him, he would come out of his office =nd essult
him. 1 saw manv men esssulted by thet fellow: he would practise
fiu jitsu en them, throwing them over his shoulder snd &1l over
the ground, kicking and hitting them =5 he did se.

The Jgpenese Camp Commandant was Col. Buga. Hi= Adjutznt was
Lieut. N=gata and the gther officer wes Lieut. Ujime. Previously,
we hsd & man called Hagel as Adjutant and another offiecer called

lﬁtmhe btut they have since geone. [jims freguently visited
the na# and zlwars behoved extremely well towards me, but he
would summon the gusrd and give him = reel ticking off in
Jzpanese, 235 1 could see from his tone of volee =nd the way the
gunrd stood to sttention snd answersd. Hot infreguently, sfter

such 3 ticking off he would go awey snd then the hest weuld he
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T put on =nd we would be made to work much herder; men would be
- smacked for not working hard enough, On one occesion we were
told to Tunm Tound the squste beceause he hed been to a fupersl
end thought we were not working hard enough. Rowlsnd was
santenced to 10 dsys? in the cells beesuse he hed been socused
of to reise some money for = lady whom he had promised
to look after by selling some M & V. The Japsnese tried to
pin this offence on Remlsnd ani the man to whom he had sold
the stuff; they were all imprisoned and Howland was given &
very severe beating on Ujima's orders by a2 sergeant demed Kogo,
who was known 85 BanjJo Bill. After ten days! imprisorment,
RBowland came out and would not say much sbout the esseault, but
I noticed thet both legs were black from the hip te the kmee
both inside and out, in front end behind. Eventuslly, I
questioned him on vhe subject and he told me thet Eogo had
conm? tted the msssult with a pele to try to make him econfess.

The whele cemp has been kept out late Because of slsck work on
the pert of one individusl. Mztsuda was known as The Little
Pig; he was in charge of the gardens =t one pericd smd I hsd

e Lot to do with him. He never ascltuslly dsssulted me but on one
occasion he told me to send & working pevty of 25 men to deo a
Jeb in the swamp. Haturally, 28 moest of the gang had ulcers

I called for volunteers and only szbout 20 came Torwavd. 1 then
told the men that thers would be trouble If we did net zet the 25,
It was never sdvisshle to nddress Eny perticulmrT man because if
I did that end he refused because of & bad ulcer the su=rd would
always say to him, "You were told th come out. Why didn't you??
and he would then preceed %o assault him. Eventumlly, 25 men
did come out. MNeisuds then ecsiled the rest up to the hut and made
thes fall in. He then proceed Lo ssseult them. The First man
hi# went to was Morris, who wes an elderly man, and used his
rifle butt on him. I had hed = good meny dealing= with Metsuds
so § stood In the way to trr to stop the Sazault, kmowing that
1 would not be teuched myself. However, 1 was pushed xxkx sside
slthouzh I protested against the besting of men whom I would
mot sllow to Zo out teo Hﬂi EwEx¥E bowsver, he said, "Ihst
doesn?'t malter.® The Weasel then ceme up #2nd Joined the party
snd between theom they gave the whole crowd of nbout 30 men a
really good beating up. They did not touch me, Gowever, no
metter how much I interferod.

After the surrender, the Jepenese produced & feir smoumt of drugs
but before that they had been very scarce. Men died as a resulti
of the lack of moedlenl troatment; there weres casas when N & B
would heve saved lives and when proper focd would hzve made a
big difference. NEgzs were belng seld on the black maviket and

, could be obtainod by the women, 50 obviously the Jepanese must
have been sble to get thess supplies hed thev wished te do 0.
Col, Adems was always asiking for gggs und specisl food so that
the sick men could be gliven special diet, but the Jdapaness yexkiy
rarvely, if ever, produced Eny EZgs or ntFiE'r food fit for the
slek men.

One msn committed suieide in the gusrd room after beinmg guestioned,
and BidmesZ died in my presence from dropsys I think he could

have been seved had he been given proper food earlier. Altegether,
about 12 er 14 men dled, including Oeleimans and Ehaw,

In Marech 1944 we cach received ope-sixth of an American Bed Cross
parcel. The Americans ezch recelved one parcel. Before they
were issued, 1 actually saw a Jepsnese N.C.0. smoking &= Chesterficld
cigarette whiech I leter discovered had bheon takén from onc of the
paTeals, I saw the Japanesse alsc wearling Aed Cross boots.which
werTe issued to Indlomesizns who were engaged in guard duky.

¥hen the boxes were supplied to us they had all been opened and

I think seme thingz nad been taken from them., Bome of the
cigarettas had a "VP z2i:n on them ceses and in many instences
that sign had been knecked off} it wes obviecus, therefers, thnt
the Japarese had gone throuogh the boxus.

Qur own camp was not marked with distinetive sigms to show that
ﬁ;ﬂkf,n contsined prisoners-ofl-war. Bugs inte-viewed Col. Adams =nd
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told him they were golimg to put up s motice readinz "P.O.W."
gver the whole camp. I sew the potice board myself. I

ced that the Japanese barracks themsclve= ware clearly
maTked; we could see that from our gardens. Later, the sign

I certify that the sbove svidence ie true and correct.

Taken and sworn before me &t ) Jgial =
."_'_'_._,_,_-—'—'_'_-..

Lsbuen Islsend on 10 October
o Ft

Commi ssioner.

f¥l.



AFELIAVIT, Page 1,

o this Thirtieth day of Hay, Ome thoussnd nine hurdred and forty-
saven, Thomas Herwvyn ATHINS, reslding &t 10 Bonma Vista Ave,MAHUUBERA,
= ogoupation, Country trawveller for the firm of Mesars Pennett and
Barkall Litd, Sydney, malkesa cath and states aa follows:i-

(1) Ex EX26888, Corporal, Ho.l Co¥s: A.he3.0., 8 Division, A.I.F.
Captured at Bingepore on the 15 Febrmauery 194Z.

(2) Whilat a Priscner of Mar T wda at o times confinad to GSAEA
Camp, When at Osaka Comp our strength was 200, In Hey 1945,
167 men left thils cemp, including myself, [or TAXEFU Camp,
and were jolmed en route by 33 Amerleens, bringlng our strengto
back to 200.

(3] On arrival at Tekefo we wers set to work im a faotory E:nﬁuning
carbon elementa and fertilizer, The work was wickedly herd.
Weakened as we were by insufificient food ab Osala,and at Takefu
our rationa were considerably less. Three times e day we each
recelved lesa than & small bowl of rice, The only vegetabls
given us belng cerrot tops, potato tops and s seaweed. Fish
occaslonally ceme to the camp, but our share, after the Japs
had pilfered 1t was & plece leas than the size of a matchbhax
per man,

{£) AStached to this camp were threes Japansse Army men who were
there permansntly to puard us.

(5} fCme of thase men, the senior, I knew as the "BONBER". Cme of hia
subordipates belng known to me as "HOASE FACE®, the pthser as
"FRETTY B0Y". I quote theese seemingly fectitous neme -3 aa you
will most likely be able %to identifly them Irom these.

(6) We were forced o work i#n clogs, havliog po 1ssue of boots, and
the majority of man'sa feet broke out in festera and sores
sausad by the fertllizer and carbon. Dr.3TENNING, in cHerge of
gur camp Mediecal did most asterlling work but was handlcapped by
lack of madielne and drugs, Sick men ware every day dragged
from thelr beads and Tforced to work,

(7)) During the time I was In the camp, I aufferad two zevers
bashings. The firat wes a2t the hends of a clvillan guard attach-
-gd to the fasctory, who waa lmown aa "CGOLD TEETH", He set about
me wlith e hardwood stick 1n the shape of a sword, severely
hitting me sbout the right aida of the head and neck, the blows
Pinslly making me unconscious. From Injuries T recelwved In this
attack I now recelve & pension, The other bashing wes glven me
by the three Japanese Army guards as mentloned in paragraphs
(4) and (5) above.

{ngtlnuﬂd - page E)

Signaturs of deponent o .%—iwr.
Witness to signature

lce of the Feace.



(8)

(9]

AFFIDAVIT - Continued, Page 2.

In July 19456, Allied planes ralded a wlllage adjecent to us
end I was sesn one night loocking through the ventilatiocn slats
a2t the fires caused by the raiding planes, The next morning at
T+30 these three guards came ta where I was working, astood me
to attentlon and fired gueations at me In Japanese language.

I naeturelly could ¥OT answer nor understand them and when I
told them so they set about bashing me,

The ringleadsr was the senior Jap known as the "BOMEER". I was
bashad about the fece with & rilfls butt and kicked in the legs
end testicles. After the thres of them had been &t me for an
hour and I could atand no more, I was Tforced to lmesl down on
gravel with my feet extended - a piece of 2 iInch by 2 1nch
hardwood wes pleced behlnd my Imees on which I wea forced to
sit, then 2 four gellon tin of wster was placed on my knees,
After en hour of this T becsma unconscious = I was revived with
water, threatensd with a bayonet and set back Iln the original
posltion. The palin caused me Ifrom this torture was shocking.
At ppproximately 10 A.Ms & Jap civillan Toreman at The worksa
Intervened with the Jap soldiers and through his offorts I wea
allowad to go. ||

(10)My workmetes carried me te a shsd whers after about one hour

{i1)

I was able To steand wvp. Witneszes to this attack were aa
follows: Lfcpl. H.ROPERTS, of Victoria = Dvr.W.ASKIN of Q!land=
Pte.L.NWORRIS of Mslbourne, Pte.C.BILLS of NHaremburn NSW, and
Pte.D.AEDCRAF of Fensingbton, NSW, A witnesas of tha Tirs%t attack
by thea Jap civillen guard was & H.UEWNLAND of Eatoomba , lSH. I
regret that I cannot think of the names of other men who waprs
therea at the time, The offlicer 1n charge of the camp was inform
-pd of thess beatings and tortures but madse no move to stop
them,

Whilst In this camp the Japaness Officer Iin charge, haed in the
atore a large nmmber of Hed Cross parcels which were NOT issusd
to us. At this time every man wes iIn very poor physical comdlt-
-lom and this food was urgsntly needed by us,

Thirtieth day of May,
1947, ((ma thousand
nine hundred and forty
aeven.)
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Sig:nature of deponant,

Sworn bﬂ the deponent )

Thomas Mervyn ATEIH3 )

gt SYDHEY on Tha ] e
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BEEFORE ME

tlce of the Paace
Tor the State of lew South Wales,
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Hesiding at Dilll, Portuguese Timor

| sworn atateat- I am 23 years of of Astrallsn naticnalit
ﬂh:g ye wgo, 7

My persanent home is University Strect, Mirends,

Eiranda, Sew Scuth “alaa,

wiome L

Foa, Captain of the Hetherlands Sast Indles Army,
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| “;a 1N THE SUPHEME COURT
@F VICTORLa

1, IAN ALEX ATEVHS of weed 3% DONALD in the State eof Vietoria

ex=VX3025T australian Imperial Forces meke ceth and ssay ma

follows i

le THAT between the periods of 15 Feb 42 and the end of hoatilities

I was a Frisoner ¢f War at the KAWASKEI WAR CAMP, OSAKI ARE4 and
SINGAPORE AKEne Of this time I spent 2 years 10 months in EaWASAKT
CAMP : period Dee 42 until May 45,

2. THAT during the time I was in EaWASATT CaMP I oan recall the
following 1lletreatment of POWa belng conmitted ;e

Js THaT Pte Jack HILL was sceused of trafing a belt with a Japenese
guarda It 3¢ happened that one of thes guards had ssked HILL fop

the belt and HILL bad pno optiom but to glve it tc hims The 3Sgt=Maj,
SAKaMOTO (known ss "Big B111") learned of ths transaction end came

to the goard house and basgked HILL with his fists and also belted him
with ths bal¥§ in guesation, Ths belt was &an ~rmy Pattern Balts Leather
with brass buokis, at coneluslcn of the bashing HILL had weals across
the facs and was in a very dagzed conditicn, This occurred approximately
april 194 5.

44 THaT on one ocoasslion 90 members of ths Royal Seotilish Regt wore
brought intc the Camp in & very weakesned conditien, They were stood

oo the parade grourd whilst a hut was being prepared for them, On bsing
ealled upon to enter the hmt, those men who were too wesk to hurry were
badly beaten by MORIMOTO (lknown alsgo as "Bonnie Lasiis®™ and "Jack Oakia")
en Officer, acposs thelr backe with the flat of his sword, Twanty=seven

of theasprisoners dled within a very short time,

E ':'II:PE-EHE.



Page B(two)

LS

£a THaT = Japanese Private nickoamed “ﬂit-ayn'.'mngmnu" and "The Catg"
(the s=ams man) illeirsated every prlsoner who infringed any regulation
in ths smallest details Usual methods were bashings with fists, bayonst
seabbard and alse kickings with the booted foet.

6s THuT = Japanese kmeown as MIHaRL,wn interpreter in the Camp, ill-tresated
the priseners in various ways but mximiy how they suffered most waz by
hig stealing of ths prisoners rations.

Te THaT two medical orderlies known 2s "DOFEY" and "HaPPY" I kxws had
Irequantly sean bashing slck persomnnel with fists. These two alse mads
a -racket of selling gedical guppliss to outsiders, Most prisoners
prefareed to stay eway from siek peradag becauss of heving to stend

to attention for long paricods .

SWORN 8t Donald in the Saxktm State

S o

of Victoria this /2 day of V'
Thousand Nins H -_ %fﬁ; .

MAY, One a ine Hundred , o -

and Forty-seven by the above= : S o R -

namad

Ial ALEX ATEYNS

f. = i =
Befire me h,f.i-{,a ' F%f?éﬂ.&ﬁ

i - =

it drkem o e xR,

s Commlasionar of the Suprems Court of the State of Victoria for
taking affidavits,






